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I. AUTHORITY 

1.1, This administrative complaint for civil penalties ("Complaint") is issued under the 

autho'rity vested in the Admin islf<ltor of the U.S . Environrncnra l Protection Agency ("EPA" or 

"Cornplninant") by Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Clean Water Ac t ("Act"). 33 U.S.C 

§ 13 19(g)(2)(B). The Administrator has delega ted this authority to the Regional Administrator of 

EPA, Region 10, who in tum has redc lcgaled it to the Director, Office of Compl iance and 

Enforcement, 

1.2. Pursuant to Section J09(g)(2)(B) of the Act, and in accordance with the 

"Consolida ted Rules of Prac tice Govern ing Ihe Administrati ve Assessmenl of Civil Penalties," 
• 

40 C.F.R. Part 22 ("Part 22 Rules") , Complaina nt he reby proposes the assessment of a civ il 

penalty against Mike Vierstra ("Respondent") for Ihe unlawful discharge of pollutants into 

navigable waters in vio lation of Section 301 (a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a). 
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II. ALLEGAnONS 

2. L Respond..:'J1t is an individual doing business as Vierstra Dairy. As such, he h a 

"rlL~rMm" within lbe meaning of Set:ilon 502(5) of foe Act. 3.3 USc. § J362(5), and 40 CFR. 

§ 122.2. 

2.2. Respondent operates the Vierstra Dfliry (''the Facility"}, which is located at 

2588 E 3500;\j ne;iC Twin Falls, fdaho. 

milking barn and several w<l.;;lewater lagoons. Rc;;pondent confine.;; :md Qr H1:1intains cattle for a 

total of 45 days or more in any 12~nlonth period in these c){fTl'ljs, pens and the burn. 

lA. ~either crops, ve-getaIion, forage growlh, nor po,;l-harvc-;l fc"id1;I(:K Jre ~u;.,tnillcd 

over any portion of the corrals, pens: or the bam in use at the FadElY. 

2.5, Tnt: F;jcllily is an "anima! feeding operHtion" 35 that phrase is defined in 

40 C.F.R. § 122.23(b)(I). 

2.6. At the lime of the Murch and June 2009 discharge!; de:;crihcd below, the Facility 

confined ,i\ppro>umfltely 1,000 milking cows, Upon information and belief, Respondent fl!1S 

confined more lhan 1,000 milking cows al the Facility for 45 days or more in lhe last 12 months. 

2.7. The: Facility is a "col1cemrnted animal feeding opt":ralHJO" as that phm~ i:;. art1ued 

in 40 C.FR. § I 22.23(b)(2), and is a "poinr source" as used in Secrion 502(l4) oftbe Act, 

33 U.S.c. § 1362(14). 

2.8. On Murch 25, 2009, in response. to a complaint :egarding 111iUlUYe in the Low Line 

C:lnrtl, an employee of the Twin Falls Canal Company ("TFCC") inspected a 1'Ol1iol1 of ihe Low 

Line c"Hm111ocated near the Facility. The Low Line Canal is owned. by TFCC During th<lt 
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inspection the TFee employee observed dairy wastes flowing in a ditch mnning from 

Respondent' s Faci lity into the Low Line Canal. The discharge from the ditch fo rmed a very large 

pond of waste water in the bottom of the Low Line Canal, which was dry at the time. 

2.9. On May 30 and 31,2009, nearby residents and representatives of the TFCC 

observed an on-going discharge from the Vierstra Diary to the Low Line Canal. 

On June 1,2009, the Idaho Department of Agriculture inspected the Facility. At the time of lhe 

inspection, the Facility was discharging dairy wastes (0 the l...ow Line Canal. 

2.10. The Low Line Canal flows inlo the Snake River. The Snake Ri ver flows into the 

Columbia River, which flows into the Pacific Ocean. .. 
2. 11. The Low Line Canal is "navigable waters" as that term is defined in Scction 

502(7) of the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1362(7), and "waters of the United Stales" within the meaning of 

33 U.S.C. § 1362(7) and 40 C.P.R. § 122.2. In the alternative, Low Line Canal conveys 

pollutant s from Respondent's Facility to the Snake River, which is a Waler of the United Siaies. 

2. 12. Spillage or overflow from animal watering systems, as well as any water that 

comes into con tact with any raw materials, products, or byproducts including manure, litter or 

feed is "process wastewater" as the term is defined in 40 c.F.R. § I 22.23(b)(7) . Process 

wastewater discharged from the Facility is and contains "pollutam[s]" within the meaning of 

Section 502(6) of the Act, 33 U.s.c. § l362(6). 

2.13. The process wastewmcr di scharges described in Pawgraphs 2.8-2.9, constitu ted 

"d ischarge[sj of pollutanls" with in the mean ing of Section S02( 12) of the Act, 

33 U.S.c. § J 362(1 2), from a "poin t source" within the meaning of Section S02( 14) of the Act, 

33 U.S.c. § 1362(14). 
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2.14. The discharges of pollutanrs described in Paragraph 2.8 ·2.9, were unauthorized 

discharger; of pollutan ts to waters of the United Slates and constitute at least four days of 

violation of Section 30[(a) of tile Act, 33 U.S.c. § \311(a). Consequently, pUrSuant to Section 

309(g)(2)(B) of (he ACI, and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, Respondent is liable for the administrative 

assessment of civil penalties in an amount not to exceed $16,()(X) per violation for eneh day 

during which the violation continues, up to a maximum penally allowed under 

33 U.S .C § 1319(g). 

Ill. PROPOSED PENALTY 

3.1. Based on the foregoing allegations of violation, Complainant hereby proposes that 

the Pres iding Officer assess an administrative penalty aga inst Respondent, for the violations ciled 
~ 

above, in the amount not 10 exceed the stat utory maximum penalty allowed under 33 U.S.c. 

§ 1319(g)(2)(B) as amended by the Civil Monelary Penalty In,flation Act, and as reflected in 

40 CF.R. § 19.4. 

3.2. The final assessed penalty will take into consideration the nature, circumstances, 

extent , and gravity of the violation, and. with respect to the Respondent, abili ty to pay, prior 

history of violations, degree of culpabilit y, economic benefi t and savings resulting from the 

violation, and other appropriate factors to the ex tent the information is avai lable for such 

dete nninat ions. 

3.3. The nature, circumstances, ex tent, and gravity of the vio lations described above 

arc s ignificant. Respondent has approximately 1,000 head of milking cows in his Facility, yet 

has very poor controls to prevent cattle wastes from entering the nearby Low Line Canal. 

Respondent 'S poor management of rus wastewater resulted in the discharge of large volumes of 

manure-contaminated feedl ot wastewater to waters of the United States. Such discharges contain 

s ignificant levels of both fecal coliform and Escherichia coli (E. coli) bacteria. The presence of 

these bacte ri a indicales (he po-"sible presence of a number of pathogens (such as E. coli OJ57:H7 

and Sa lmonella) as well <IS parasites (slich as Crypfnsporidium). Illnesses caused by these 

microorganisms can result in gastroenteritis, fe ver, k.idney failure, and even death. Animal 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency COMPLA INT 
1200 Sidh Avenue, Suite 900DOCKET NO. CWA·l0-201O·0018 
Seattle, Wlti>hington 98101 PI\GE - 4 

(206) 553· 1037 



, ' 

waiC{$. These dccn::3ihed oX:i~<n levels can adversdy impH':[ m:my 'PlX:llcsof fb,t, il1(Jig'"'''''' to 

the P;;;cifi;;;; KnrilH-ves.t {including -.almnn spedc~ listed ;*8 eUzlt1u!jcft'd or thre:JiCn<:d Ul1,kr the 

Endangered Species Act) during their developmental slag~s as wet! af{ at maturity, The Snake 

River, \J,'bid) is immetiiately dowHsH'eam from Responden!'s FaciHly, is Ih;Jed by the Slt1le of 

Mallo as im:paired fOf excessive rrutri.::nts and badcrl::L 

3.4. By avoiding or uchying the cos;, uhsndated wilh impiement!llg waste 

management cUf1trols n,;;tt would have ensured compliance wttb the Clean \Vau::r Act, 

Respondent has renlizcd economic benefJt 3S. <1 result of the violmiof)s alleged above. 

3.5. Respondent has a signtficant prior history of vio!atioos wilh the Idaho Deportment 

of AgriClll!ure involving vt01ut)on:; of the Clean Water Act. 

3.6. Re"'rKJadenfs culpabilIty 15 high. Despite a checkcH:O past of compliance with the 

C!ean Water Act, and numerous complaints abOUl poor wastewater control at his facility, 

Resp,,?ndenr ,continues to discharge animal wastes to walen; of [he l;nited States. 

3.7. Based on the infOlmation availab!e to EPA regarding Resflondent's financiul 

COfldttion, Respondent appears able to pay;j civil pe.nuhy in (he range nolt:'d ilbove. Sbould 

Respondent submil informution substantiating nn inabHlly io p:1y Ihis anl0tmt, the pmpo~eo 

pen(l.lty may be reduced to.reflect this inability. 

IV, OPPORTUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING 

4.1. Respondent 111$ th..:; right l(} fde an Answer rcque"Ung a he[U"lng on :my mnterinl 

[;;)(;i contained in this Cornplaint or on tbe appropriarene<;~ of the penaliy proposed herein. Upon 

re,quest the Presidll1g Officer may hold <l. hearlng for the ass.es;:;ment of these civil penalties, 

conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Part 22 Rules and the Administrative 

Pcoceuure Act, 5 U.S.c. ~ 551 et set? A copy of the· Pnrl22 Rule:; accompanies this Complnint. 
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4.2. Responden t's Answer, including any request for hearing, must be in writing and 

muse be filed with : 

Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. Environmental Protec tion Agency, Region 10 

IZOO Six th Avenue, Sui te 900, Mail Stop ORC-158 

Seallle, Washingto n 98 101 


V, FAILURE TO FILE AN ANSWER 

5.1. To avo id a default order being entered pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17, Respondent 

must file a wrillen Answer to this Complaint with the Regional I-Iearing Clerk within thirty (30) 

days after service of Ihis Complaint. 

5.2. fn acco rdance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.15, Resp1~H1dent's Answer must clearly and 

d irect ly admit. deny, or ex plain each of the fac tual allegations conlai ned in thi s Complaint with 

regard to which Respondent has any knowledge. Respondent 's Answer must also Slate: ( 1) the 

c ircumstances or arguments which are alleged to const itu te the grounds of defense; (2) the facls 

which Respondent intends to place at issue; and (3) whether a hearing is requested. Failure to 

admit, deny, or explain any materi al faclUa l allegation contained herein constitutes an admission 

o f the allegation. 

VI. INFORMAL SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE 

6. 1. Whether or not Respo ndent requests a heuri ng, Respondent may request ;:Ill 

informal sett lement conference 10 discuss the fuets o f th is case, the proposed penalty. and the 

possib ility of settling thi s matte r. To request such a sett lement conference, Respondent should 

contact: 
Mark A. Ryan 
Assistant Regional Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Region 10 
1435 N, Orc hard S l. 
Bo ise, Idaho 83706 
(208) 378,5768 
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6.2. Note (haL a request for an informal sclf lement conference does no t ex tend Ihe 

thiny (30) day period for tiling a written Answer to thi s Complaint, nor does it wnive 

Res pondent's right to request a hearing. 

VII. RESERVATIONS 

7.1. Neithe r assessment no r paymenl of an administrati ve civil penalty pursuant 10 this 

Complainl shall affect Respondent's conlinuing obligations to comply with; ( I ) the Clean Water 

Act and all other environmental s tatllles; (2) th.e terms and conditions of all applicable Clean 

Water Act permits; and (3) any Compliance Order isslied to Respondent under Seclion 309(<1) of 

the Act, 33 U.S.c. § 1319(a), concerning the violations alleged herei n. 

Dated thi,;' 4'1<L.} 

,. 
er,2009 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that the foregoing "Complaint" in the matter of Mike Vierstra d/b/a Vierstra 
Dairy. Docket No. CWA-IO-2010-0018, was sent to the following persons, in the manner 
spec ified, on the date below: 

Original and one copy, hand-delivered: 

Carol Kennedy, RegionJI Hearing Clerk 
U.S . Envi ronmental Protection Agency, Region 10 
1200 Sixth Avenue, Sui te 900, Mail SLOp ORC-ISS 
Seatt le, Washington 98 101 

A I rue and con'ee( copy, together with a copy of Ihe "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing 
the Admjnistrati ve Assessment of Civil Penailies," 40 C.F.R Part 22, by certified mail, return 
receipt requested: 

Mike Vierstra 

Vierstra Dairy 

2588 East 3500 North 

Twin F.lIs, Idaho 8330 1 


DATED: _--"..:.U-l-I--'I.!::I0'--__, 2009 

U.S. Environmental Prot«tion Agency 

1'200 Sixth Avenue. Suite 900 

SeltI1Je, Washington 98101 
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